## THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE

## Wednesday, 4 September 2013

Minutes of the meeting of The City Bridge Trust Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on Wednesday, 4 September 2013 at 1.45pm

## Present

## Members:

Jeremy Mayhew (Deputy Chairman) (in the Chair) Deputy Ken Ayers Ray Catt Simon Duckworth Stuart Fraser Marianne Fredericks Alderman Alison Gowman Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines Vivienne Littlechild Edward Lord Wendy Mead Alderman Matthew Richardson Ian Seaton

## Officers:

Xanthe Couture	-	Town Clerk's Department
Steven Reynolds	-	Chamberlain's Department
David Farnsworth	-	The City Bridge Trust
Jenny Field	-	The City Bridge Trust
Ciaran Rafferty	-	The City Bridge Trust
Tim Wilson	-	The City Bridge Trust
Sandra Davidson	-	The City Bridge Trust
Jemma Grieve Combes	-	The City Bridge Trust
Karisia Gichuke	-	The City Bridge Trust
Julia Mirkin	-	The City Bridge Trust
Susanna Lascelles	-	Public Relations Office

## In attendance:

• Andrew McMurtrie

Representatives from the following organisations, whom the Chairman welcomed to the meeting were also present:

- Who Cares Trust (Annex J)
- Magpie Dance (Annex A)

## 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from the Chairman, Deputy Billy Dove.

The Chairman welcomed incoming Grants Officer Julia Mirkin to the meeting of the Committee.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations of interest.

### 3. MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the last meeting held on 4<sup>th</sup> July 2013 be approved as an accurate record.

#### 4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk that identified items which required further action by officers.

### **City Bridge Trust Business Plan 2013-16**

The Chairman noted the Town Clerk had circulated an amended version of Item 4. It was noted that a report on the meaning of independence in connection to the Trust's relationship with the City of London Corporation would not now be brought to Resource Allocation Sub Committee and would be addressed in the City Bridge Trust Business Plan.

### **Outstanding Grant Conditions**

Grant conditions relating to Dulwich Helpline & Southwark Churches Care and Young People Matter were corrected to appear as outstanding items from the previous meeting of 4 July 2013.

### 5. **PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS**

The Committee considered the regular progress report and events update of the Chief Grants Officer.

The Chief Grants Officer informed Members that the aim was to commit remaining funds for the year as fully as possible.

At the request of the Chief Grants Officer, Members agreed the new name of the new grants programmes as 'Investing in Londoners', which had been recommended by Officers and PRO.

The Deputy Chairman advised that a list of monitoring visits had been sent to Members but only a few responses had been received. He remarked that it was important for Members to gain an understanding of the Trust through these monitoring visits and encouraged responses.

Members discussed the frequency of notifications of monitoring visits and it was agreed that, in future, Members would receive notice of monitoring visits quarterly rather than annually.

The Deputy Chairman queried as to whether or not the process of distributing Trust media clippings to Members could be improved upon. PRO undertook to investigate if links of recent media clippings could be brought together as a PDF incorporating articles of links distributed to Members, in addition to their inclusion in the City of London Corporation morning media clippings.

In response to the information about how the Trust assesses the cost of generating funds, the Deputy Chairman asked whether a standout metric could be used. The Chief Grants Officer advised that questions are tailored to each applicant and raised at the outset of each grant application process.

A Member remarked that would be beneficial for the Trust to work with the Corporation's Secondary of London on the possibility of future collaboration noted in the report.

Members and Officers discussed the City Philanthropy Exhibition and that Livery Companies with the greatest charitable activities should be prioritised for invitations. In light of this, a Member recommended that Livery Company Charity Managers should also be considered.

In regards to the conference with Barrow Cadbury Trust, LankellyChase Foundation and New Economics Foundation, hosted by CBT, Members and Officers said it was important to have a clear plan going forward of the benefit and objectives of hosting these events and their profile.

### **RESOLVED** – That,

- a) the report be received and its contents noted; and
- b) the new grants programmes be given the over-arching title of 'Investing in Londoners'.

## 6. **REVENUE AND OUTTURN 2012/13**

The Committee received a joint report of the Chamberlain and Town Clerk relative to the revenue outturn for the year 2012/13.

The Chamberlain reported that any implications of last year's large underspend, for the workflow for the coming year were being discussed.

## 7. GRANT APPLICATIONS

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, which dealt with recommendations relating to applications received from the current grants programme. Members noted that a total of sixty-five applications would be dealt with at the meeting, of which three were Strategic Initiatives, ten were recommended for approval, thirty-two recommended for rejection, eight had been withdrawn, and five had lapsed. Seven grants were noted as proposed for approval under delegated authority.

At the request of the Deputy Chairman, Officers undertook to review the structure of the report so that information was more clearly presented.

## 8. **GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ASSESSMENTS**

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which recommended grants to various organisations.

Members considered each application and the following observations were noted:

Item 8.b) (Migrants Resource Centre) – due to concerns raised by the Deputy Chairman that this project may be considered politically controversial, assurances were given by Officers that this grant would support migrants from different backgrounds in securing employment and training information and skills, aimed at improving community cohesion.

Item 8.c) (Ealing Music Therapy) – Members and Officers discussed the statutory responsibilities of local authorities. Officers explained there was no statutory requirement to provide music therapy and the project would support a wider population that would not otherwise receive such a service if the grant was not approved.

Item 8.d) (Grief Encounter) – Officers advised Members that the base for the charity was in Barnet but the project would support work in the boroughs of Waltham Forest and Barnet. A Member remarked that this was an excellent project in an area that lacked support.

Item 8.f) (Age UK Redbridge) – Officers reported that the charity was developing services to cover both Barking and Dagenham, but its HQ would remain in Redbridge. It was remarked the organisation had been waiting for the grant approval for some time due to CBT staff workloads.

Item 8.g) (Castlehaven Community Association) – Officers clarified that the funding was conditional on match funding.

Item 8.h) (Chinese National Healthy Living Centre) – Members and Officers discussed the reserves held by the organisation. The Chamberlain advised that each charity's reserve policy was assessed and examined by Officers to investigate if required reserves were excessive, while the report to Committee should demonstrate why the amount of funding is required. It was agreed that due to the nature of this project, the recommended grant should be amended to  $\pounds145,000$  over three years ( $\pounds50,000$ ;  $\pounds45;000$ ;  $\pounds50;000$ ).

RESOLVED: - That the following grants be approved:-

## 8.a) Magpie Dance - Recommended Grant £90,130

£90,130 over 3 years (£17,670; £35,740; £36,720) towards the costs of a youth dance programme for learning disabled young people aged 11-25.

## 8.b) Migrants Resource Centre - Recommended Grant £31,100

£31,100 for a third and final year towards a part-time (21 hrs) Empowerment Worker and the related costs of a cross-community media project.

## 8.c) Ealing Music Therapy - Recommended Grant £26,700

£26,700 over three years (£8,600; £8,900; £9,200) towards the costs of a Music Therapist and Learning Support Assistant (both 5 hours per week), and associated on-costs for Ealing Music Therapy's Saturday Services.

## 8.d) Grief Encounter - Recommended Grant £103,850

£103,850 over three years (£33,600; £34,600; £35,650) towards two part-time Senior Clinical Practitioners (1 FTE), providing services for children and their families in North and East London.

## 8.e) Forest Recycling Project - Recommended Grant £81,400

£81,400 over two years (£40,700;£40,700) towards a Full-Time Project Worker and the running costs of a project enabling young people and those on benefits to build skills through structured learning and to reduce isolation through engagement in environmental activities.

## 8.f) Age UK Redbridge - £63,900

£63,900 over two years (£32,400; £31,500) towards the salary (30 hours per week) of an Information and Opportunities Advisor to establish an advice and information service for older people in LB Barking & Dagenham.

# 8.g) Castlehaven Community Association - Recommended Grant £109,400

£109,400 (£35,600; £34,400; £39,400) towards the Full-Time Ageactivity Project Manager post and the cost of project evaluation. The grant is conditional on securing full match funding.

# 8.h) Chinese National Healthy Living Centre - Recommended Grant £145,000

£145,000 over three years (£50,000; £45,000; £50,000) for the salary of a Full-Time Co-ordinator plus running costs of the London Chinese Dementia & Alzheimer's Project. The grant in year 2 is subject to the organisation increasing the number of Trustees from the current number of three.

## 8.i) **Down's Syndrome Association - Recommended Grant £81,700**

£81,700 over three years (£26,400; £27,200; £28,100) for the costs of the In Transit programme for London.

## 8.j) The Who Cares Trust - Recommended Grant £152,600

£152,600 over three years (£48,800; £51,000; £52,800) towards a participation programme for young Londoners aged 16-12 years leaving the care system.

## 9. STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

## 9.a) Youth and Philanthropy Initiative - Recommended Grant £48,330 The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which recommended that the Committee commission the Youth and Philanthropy Initiative to pilot its schools programme. The Chief Grants Officer said that the grant application had been withdrawn.

**RESOLVED** – That the grant was withdrawn and may be presented at a later date.

## 9.b) **Practical Guide for Charity Chairs - Recommended Grant £8,200**

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which recommended that the Committee commission the City Centre for Charity Effectiveness to produce a practical guide for charity Chairmen.

In response to a query from a Member, the Deputy Grants Officer advised that the support of CBT and City of London Corporation for this initiative would be visible in the materials produced.

**RESOLVED** – That, the City Centre for Charity Effectiveness be commissioned to produce a practical guide for Charity Chairmen, at a cost of £8,200 to be charged against the City Bridge Trust Strategic Initiatives allocation for 2013/14.

## 9.c) Strategy for Sharing Learning & Knowledge - Recommended Grant £175,000

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which recommended that the Committee approve the Strategy for Learning and Knowledge Sharing for the remainder of 2013/14.

In response to a query from the Deputy Chairman, the Chief Grants Officer advised that the cost of evaluations of the older Londoners and mental health programmes would each be £20,000 (paragraph 4.5.2).

In regards to Table 1 (pg 165), Members were updated that the number of Programme Evaluations would be two with a budget of £40,000.

## **RESOLVED** – That,

- a) the programme of activities set out in the paper be approved; and
- b) a budget of £175,000 to implement the programme be charged against the budget for Strategic Initiatives 2013/14.

# 10. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS FOLLOWS:-

## 10.a) Grants Recommended for Rejection

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which recommended that 32 grant applications from the Working with Londoners programme be rejected for the reasons identified in the schedule attached to the report.

**RESOLVED:** That, the grant applications, detailed in the schedule attached to the report, be rejected.

### 10.b) Grants Proposed for Approval under Delegated Authority

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised Members of the following eight grants, totalling £126,447 which had been presented for approval under delegated authority to the Chief Grants Officer in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman.

- St John the Evangelist Roman Catholic Church £1,152 towards the cost of an independent access audit.
- Oxford Diocesan Council for Social Work (aka Parents and Children Together, PACT) £23,400 over three years (3 x £7,800) for therapeutic support to young people and their families in London.

A Member queried whether this support would be limited to London families; Officers advised they were certain the funds would be used within London.

- Housing Justice £24,800 (£4,500; £20,300) over two years to contribute towards the cost of salary and operating costs of the Mentoring and Befriending Project in London.
- Lambeth Chinese Community Association £7,330 for a third and final year's support to continue the Healthy Living project for older people, subject to receipt of a satisfactory monitoring report for Year 2 of the previous grant.
- Sutton Seniors Forum £21,865 (£7,200; £7,285; £7,380) over three years towards the salary costs of a Part-Time administrator and project costs, subject to the Trust not being the largest single funder in year 3.
- **Flash Musicals** £24,000 over three years (£10,000; £8,000; £6,000) towards the costs of performing arts workshops for disabled young people (8 to 21 years) and wheelchair dance sessions for adults. The award is conditional on confirmation that disability equality training has taken place.
- **OBAC (Organisation of Blind African Caribbeans)** £23,900 as a third and final year's contribution to a project providing disabled people with money management skills. Release of the grant is subject to receipt of satisfactory quarterly management accounts.

## 10.c) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided details of thirteen applications which had been withdrawn.

## 10.d) Variations to Grants

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised Members of a variation to two grants agreed since the last meeting of the Committee.

## 10.e) Reports on Monitoring Visits

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer relative to two visits that had been undertaken.

## 11. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

A Member requested that, in future, the Summary of Grant Recommendations be listed with the corresponding sub letters for each grant application, as listed in the agenda. The Town Clerk and CBT Officers undertook to investigate if this was possible given the software used for this particular report.

## 12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

There were no other urgent items.

## 13. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item No.	Exempt Paragraphs
14	3
15	3

#### 14. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2013 were considered.

## 15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There was one question raised in relation to the Trust's underspend.

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items of urgent business.

## The meeting ended at 2.46pm

\_\_\_\_\_

Chairman

Contact Officer: Xanthe Couture tel. no.: 020 7332 3113 xanthe.couture@cityoflondon.gov.uk